




Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2011/12Balances through December

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 211,852.00 238,784.00 124,369.62 81,837.11 32,577.27 Teachers Salaries

1120 1,900.00 1,900.00-Certificated Substitutes

1200 71,063.00 82,745.00 35,314.32 23,542.88 23,887.80 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 40,428.00 47,787.00 22,698.84 23,097.06 1,991.10 Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 323,343.00 369,316.00 182,382.78 130,377.05 56,556.17 

2100 100,148.00 94,376.00 55,958.94 35,740.32 2,676.74 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2200 4,888.00 9,888.00 3,040.48 2,446.15 4,401.37 Classified Support Salaries

2300 96,038.00 96,248.00 47,568.00 47,883.00 797.00 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 107,771.00 113,456.00 57,763.96 55,664.34 27.70 Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 6,144.00 5,760.00 1,508.00 4,252.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 314,989.00 319,728.00 164,331.38 143,241.81 12,154.81 

3101 26,733.00 30,699.00 15,046.56 10,519.34 5,133.10 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 300.00 300.00 180.00 119.98 .02 STRS Classified Positions

3201 143.00 143.00 207.54 64.54-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 44,369.00 45,067.00 22,627.80 21,268.08 1,171.12 PERS Classified Positions

3301 187.00 592.00 124.63 467.37 OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 18,614.00 18,307.00 9,665.88 8,424.31 216.81 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 4,636.00 5,606.00 2,604.54 1,999.47 1,001.99 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 4,716.00 4,646.00 2,290.94 1,993.16 361.90 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 76,725.00 88,913.00 43,856.76 29,237.82 15,818.42 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 83,711.00 83,581.00 43,311.90 40,399.64 130.54-Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 5,154.00 6,140.00 2,936.28 2,256.57 947.15 SUI Certificated

3502 5,347.00 5,334.00 2,645.77 2,276.84 411.39 SUI Classified

3601 8,966.00 10,564.00 5,237.22 3,735.15 1,591.63 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 8,368.00 9,277.00 4,613.18 4,014.21 649.61 Workers' Compensation Classifi

3701 21,054.00 42,109.00 9,786.57 32,322.43 OPEB, Allocated Certificated

3801 48.00 48.00 39.84 8.16 PERS Reduction Recapture

3802 5,855.00 5,848.00 2,961.42 2,694.29 192.29 PERS Reduction Recapture

Total for Object 3000 314,926.00 357,174.00 157,978.25 139,097.44 60,098.31 

4100 313.00 638.00 113.27 524.73 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4200 1,613.00 4,563.00 5,250.00 687.00-Library and Reference Material

4300 15,757.00 15,963.00 701.67 4,216.34 11,044.99 Materials and Supplies

4320 1,600.00 1,600.00 550.91 1,049.09 Custodial Supplies

4330 6,000.00 6,000.00 486.13 5,513.87 Office Supplies

4350 7,000.00 7,000.00 1,574.82 80.08 5,345.10 Vehicle Upkeep

4399 55,521.00 55,521.00 Mat & Sup Undesignated Bal

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2012, Period = 6, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan  3 2012  9:26AM
001 - Sierra Co Office of Education



Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2011/12Balances through December

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4400 8,940.00 8,940.00 1,952.03 6,987.97 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 41,223.00 100,225.00 4,228.52 10,696.73 85,299.75 

5100 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 Subagreements for Services

5200 26,774.00 28,634.00 6,020.05 13,335.89 9,278.06 Travel and Conference

5300 16,321.00 16,321.00 1,575.00 7,319.00 7,427.00 Dues and Membership

5400 10,702.00 10,702.00 8,968.00 1,734.00 Insurance

5500 10,000.00 10,000.00 1,103.83 1,370.22 7,525.95 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 8,603.00 8,103.00 422.44 217.44 7,463.12 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5800 6,000.00 6,000.00 3,500.00 6,600.00 4,100.00-Professional Consulting

5801 40,386.00 40,386.00 20,000.00 1,500.00- 21,886.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 175.00 50.00- 375.00 Legal Publications

5805 700.00 700.00 148.00 122.00 430.00 Personnel Expense

5806 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 660.55 569.45 270.00 Other Services & Fees

5810 247,903.00 273,351.00 119,207.55 103,852.07 50,291.38 Contracted Services

5899 3,780.32 525.96 4,306.28-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 4,000.00 4,000.00 807.00 676.40 2,516.60 Communications

Total for Object 5000 425,389.00 452,197.00 157,399.74 142,006.43 152,790.83 

6400 34,728.00 28,941.31 5,786.69 Equipment

7110 105,780.00 139,705.00 145,000.00 4,855.71- 439.29-County Tuition Inter Dist Agre

7141 139,780.00 96,511.00 61,900.49 16,471.51 18,139.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 245,560.00 236,216.00 206,900.49 11,615.80 17,699.71 

1,665,430.00 1,869,584.00 873,221.16 605,976.57 390,386.27 Total for Expense accounts

390,386.27 1,665,430.00 1,869,584.00 873,221.16 605,976.57 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

390,386.27 1,665,430.00 1,869,584.00 873,221.16 605,976.57 Total for Org 001, Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2012, Period = 6, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan  3 2012  9:26AM
001 - Sierra Co Office of Education



 

 UNAPPROVED MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE  

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

December 13, 2011 

Downieville School, Downieville, California 
This meeting was videoconferenced at Loyalton Elementary School. 

 

 

A.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

 President TODD YORK called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm. 

 

B.  ROLL CALL 

 

 PRESENT:  Mr. Todd York, President 

   Ms. Sharon Dryden, Vice President  

   Mr.  Allen Wright, Clerk 

   Mr.  Mike Moore, Member 

   Mr. Jeff Bosworth, Member 

 

 ABSENT:     None     

 

 VACANT:     None 

 

STAFF:  Ms. Rose Asquith, Business Manager 

 Ms. Hannah Tomatis, Administrative Assistant 

 Ms. Marla Stock, Site Administrator 

 Mr. Derek Cooper, Site Administrator  

 Ms. Marlene Mongolo/Testing/SELPA Director 

     

C. FLAG SALUTE 

 

D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA   

MSCU/MOORE/WRIGHT 

 

E. BOARD ORGANIZATION 

 

1. Election of Officers for 2012 

a. President – DRYDEN nominated ALLEN WRIGHT for President.  

 Motion Passed Unanimously. 

b. Vice-President – MOORE nominated SHARON DRYDEN. YORK seconded.  

 Motion Passed Unanimously 

c. Clerk – DRYDEN nominated JEFF BOSWORTH.  YORK seconded.   

 Motion Passed Unanimously 

 

F.   INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. CORRESPONDENCE - None 

 

2. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT – Mr.  Hardeman was absent due to illness 

a) Employee Recognition – Derek Cooper, LES and LMS principal, gave recognition to 

Peggy Daigle, Downieville Aide.  

b) Mr. WRIGHT announced that Tamara Hubbs was assigned to an Instructional Aide 

position, Loyalton Middle School, 1 hour daily, effective 11/21/2011 



Sierra County Board of Education  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

December 13, 2011 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

MINUTES 

2 

 

 

c) Hillary Lozano assigned to Instructional Aide position, Downieville Elementary, 2 

(correction to 4) hours daily, effective 11/28/2011 

d) Secure Rural Schools - the Senate has a bi-partisan agreement for five years.  It includes a 

5% declining revenue based on this year (and each fiscal year thereafter, the amount that is 

equal to 95 percent of the full funding amount for the preceding fiscal year).  It is not law at 

this time. 

e) Derek Cooper presented a report on the Professional Learning Communities meetings in 

which teachers meet to discuss different avenues of the learning process to pursue for the 

students.   Math options and reading chains (elementary students) will be discussed at 

tomorrow’s PLC.  

f) Marla Stock, LHS principal, reported that the Middle School and High school teachers will 

be meeting together at tomorrow’s PLC to discuss common core and essential core 

standards. 

g) Hannah Tomatis, Administrative Assistant, reported, per the Board’s request, the 

affirmative response from several staff members in regards to BP/AR 1114, Social Media.   

 

3. BUSINESS REPORT 

 

 Ms. Asquith presented the Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/11 to 11/30/11. There 

were no comments or questions. 

 Ms. Asquith announced that the Sierra County Office of Education Business Office will be 

closed for the week of December 26, 2011, through January 2, 2012. 

 

4. STAFF REPORT 

Marlene Mongolo, SELPA Director 

 CPR classes provided by the District on October 12, 2011.   Certified:  Barbara McKurtis, 

Lennie Garcia, Melissa Bayly, Heidi Bethke, Angela Kilmurray and Marlene Mongolo. 

 Compliance Determination Report confirmed that 4.0 determinations were met for both 

County and District.   

 SMARTER Balance Assessments that relate to the common core standards, replacing the 

STAR test in some grades, will be fully implemented by 2013-14 on a national level.   

 Special Education will be under Self Review this year.  The focus is to review all students 

and parents and a percentage of special education files to assure state requirements are met.   

 

5. SPTA REPORT - None 

 

6. BOARD MEMBER’S REPORT - None 

 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

President WRIGHT opened the meeting for public comment at 6:25 pm.    

There was no comment at either location. 

President WRIGHT closed the meeting for public comment at 6:25 pm. 

 

G.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

The following items were included in the consent calendar: 

 

1.  Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held November 8, 2011 

2.  Approval of bill warrants for month of November 2011 



Sierra County Board of Education  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

December 13, 2011 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

MINUTES 

3 

 

 

 MSCU/YORK/MOORE   

H.  ACTION ITEMS 

 

1.  OLD BUSINESS 

 

a. Approval of Board Bylaw 9320, Meetings 

MSCU/YORK/DRYDEN 

 

MOORE mentioned a concern about the second and third paragraphs, under 

“Teleconferencing”, page five, contradicting one another. 

Discussion ensued with varying statements regarding the pros and cons of the 

teleconferencing. 

MOORE moved to eliminate the second paragraph, page five, under “Teleconferencing”. 

DRYDEN seconded. 

BOSWORTH:  NO 

YORK:  AYE 

MOORE:  AYE 

WRIGHT:  AYE 

DRYDEN:  AYE 

Motion Passed 

 

b. Approval of 2012 Sierra County Board of Education Meeting Calendar 

 MSCU/YORK/MOORE 

 

2. NEW BUSINESS 

 

a. A Public Hearing for California Department of Education Certification of the Sierra County 

SELPA Annual Service Plan was opened at 6:38 pm.  There was no comment and the hearing 

was closed at 6:38 pm. 

 

b. Adoption of the Sierra County SELPA Annual Service Plan 

 MSCU/DRYDEN/YORK 

 

c. Adoption of the Sierra County Office of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  

 MSCU/YORK/MOORE with changes adding language to identify the separate County Boards 

 

d. Approval of Fees and Charges Exhibit, E3260, revision 

 MSCU/YORK/MOORE 

 

e. Approval of BP 3580 District Records, revision 

 MSCU/YORK/MOORE 

 

f. Approval of AR 3580, District Records, revision 

 MSCU/MOORE/YORK 

 

g. Policies for Review, Possible Action: 

 

i. Board Bylaw 9130, Board Committees 

ii. Board Bylaw 9220, Board of Education Elections 

iii. Board Bylaw 9400, Board Self-Evaluation 

 



Sierra County Board of Education  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

December 13, 2011 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

MINUTES 

4 

 

 

 

h. Adopt 2011-2012 First Interim Actuals as of October 31, 2011 

 Ms. Asquith reported that the Department of Education numbers just came in late this 

afternoon:  K-12 Education cut is 79.6 million rather than the 1.5 indicated in the board 

packet; that means that instead of $189, it would be only $13 less per student for ADA.  Once 

signed into law, the adjustment would be presented as a budget revision.  School supporting 

agencies are attempting to have the state take the cuts out of the revenue limit as opposed to 

hitting transportation directly.  We will not get transportation funding if the triggers go into 

effect.  There is still a10 to15 billion dollar shortfall for the state budget next year.   

 MSCU/MOORE/YORK 

 

I.   ADVANCED PLANNING 

 

The next regular meeting of the Board will be held on Tuesday, January 10, 2012, at Loyalton 

Elementary School, Loyalton, California at 6:00 pm. 

 

Suggested Agenda Items 

 

There were no suggested agenda items. 

a. Consolidated Application 

 

J.   ADJOURNMENT 

 

MSCU/YORK/MOORE 

Adjourned at 7:03 pm. 

 

 

 

__________________________    _______________________________ 

  Allen Wright, Clerk      Stanford J. Hardeman, Superintendent 



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 12/01/2011 through 12/30/2011

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

JANIS HARDEMAN 01-581012/07/201100013362 2,175.00 

LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS 01-430012/07/201100013363 1,073.36 

LINGUI SYSTEMS INC. 01-430012/07/201100013364 305.66 

Unpaid Sales Tax 20.66- 285.00 

BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-581012/07/201100013365 3,200.00 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE          OF 

EDUCATION

01-580812/07/201100013366 30.00 

SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-430012/07/201100013367 415.59 

VOYAGER 01-435012/07/201100013368 139.82 

01-5200 29.80 

01-5899 281.26 111.64 

TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS            INSURANCE 

GROUP

01-953512/14/201100013369 3,913.00 

76-9576 17,602.00 13,689.00 

ROSE ASQUITH 01-435012/21/201100013370 32.19 

01-5200 19.70 

01-5899 111.00 59.11 

ILEARN 01-420012/21/201100013371 1,500.00 

KEY CURRICULUM PRESS 01-430012/21/201100013372 258.13 

BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-581012/21/201100013373 4,000.00 

MARLENE MONGOLO 01-520012/21/201100013374 39.00 

NORTHEASTERN JOINT POWERS     

AUTHORITY

76-957112/21/201100013375 4,504.75 

NCS PEARSON, INC. 01-430012/21/201100013376 103.30 

HM RECEIVABLES CO LLC 01-430012/21/201100013377 219.44 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE          OF 

EDUCATION

01-580812/21/201100013378 87.05 

SIERRA FRIDAY NIGHT LIVE, INC. 01-581012/21/201100013379 200.00 

U.S. BANK 01-920012/21/201100013380 350.00 

SUSAN VANDRUFF, OTR 01-581012/21/201100013381 630.00 

37,064.88 Total Number of Checks 20 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 19 18,891.79 01

Payroll Clearing 2 18,193.75 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 37,085.54 

20.66-

37,064.88 

20 

Page 1 of 1

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan  3 2012  9:29AM001 - Sierra Co Office of Education

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



1 

 

CSBA Sample 

Board Policy 

Transitional Kindergarten 
 

BP 6170.1  

Instruction 
 

 

***Note:  The following optional policy is for use by districts that maintain kindergarten and 

may be revised to reflect district practice.  Education Code 48000, as amended by the 

Kindergarten Readiness Act of 2010 (SB 1381, Ch. 705, Statutes of 2010), gradually raises the 

age for admission into kindergarten over a four-year period. Children are eligible for 

kindergarten enrollment if they have their fifth birthday on or before December 2 in 2011-12, 

November 1 in 2012-13, October 1 in 2013-14, and September 1 in 2014-15 and beyond; see AR 

5111 - Admission.  Pursuant to Education Code 48000, children whose admission would be 

delayed because of the new age requirements must be offered a transitional kindergarten 

program beginning in the 2012-13 school year.***  

 

***Note:  Education Code 48000 defines "transitional kindergarten" as the first year of a 

two-year kindergarten program that uses a modified kindergarten curriculum that is age and 

developmentally appropriate. Education Code 48000 also specifies that transitional kindergarten 

shall not be construed as a new program or higher level of service; therefore, many of the 

requirements applicable to kindergarten (e.g., class size, minimum school day, facilities, teacher 

certification) are also applicable to transitional kindergarten. The district shall receive state 

apportionments for students in a transitional kindergarten program who meet the program 

requirements specified in Education Code 48000. *** 

 

***Note:  A district could choose to accelerate implementation of the program prior to the dates 

specified in law, thus allowing all children whose fifth birthday will be between September 1 and 

December 2 to enroll in transitional kindergarten prior to 2014-15 at a date determined by the 

Governing Board.  However, according to the California Department of Education (CDE), if a 

parent/guardian requests that his/her kindergarten-eligible child be admitted to kindergarten 

instead of transitional kindergarten, the district would need to honor that request because of the 

phase-in stipulated in law.  Furthermore, whenever kindergarten-eligible children are enrolled in 

transitional kindergarten, the district must obtain a continuance form signed by the 

parent/guardian consenting to the child's enrollment in kindergarten the following year. The 

continuance form is necessary in order to receive kindergarten apportionments for those children 

since they would otherwise be age-eligible for first grade.  CDE recommends that approval for a 

student to continue in kindergarten not be given until near the end of the year of transitional 

kindergarten, since permission obtained unreasonably far in advance could be found invalid. *** 

 

The Governing Board desires to offer a high-quality transitional kindergarten program for 

eligible children who do not yet meet the minimum age criterion for kindergarten. The program 



2 

 

shall assist children in developing the academic, social, and emotional skills they need to succeed 

in kindergarten and beyond. 

 

The district's transitional kindergarten shall be the first year of a two-year kindergarten program.  

(Education Code 48000) 

 

The Board encourages ongoing collaboration among district preschool staff, other preschool 

providers, elementary teachers, administrators, and parents/guardians in program development, 

implementation, and evaluation. 

 

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 

(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 

 

Eligibility 

 

***Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48200, each person between the ages of 6 and 18 years is 

subject to compulsory full-time education, unless otherwise exempted by law. Thus, 

parents/guardians are not required to enroll children in transitional kindergarten or kindergarten 

but, if they do so, are subject to the age criteria specified below. *** 

 

***Note:  On a case-by-case basis, Education Code 48000 authorizes early entrance into 

kindergarten for children who reach age 5 later than the date specified below, provided the 

parent/guardian approves, the district determines it is in the child's best interests, and the district 

has provided the parent/guardian with information on the advantages and disadvantages of early 

admittance; see AR 5111 - Admission. *** 

 

The district's transitional kindergarten program shall admit children whose fifth birthday lies 

between:  (Education Code 48000)  

 

1. November 2 and December 2 in the 2012-13 school year 

 

2. October 2 and December 2 in the 2013-14 school year 

 

3. September 2 and December 2 in the 2014-15 school year and each school year thereafter 

 

Parents/guardians of eligible children shall be notified of the availability of this program and the 

age, residency, and any other enrollment requirements.  Enrollment in the transitional 

kindergarten program shall be voluntary. 

 

(cf. 5111 - Admission) 

(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 

(cf. 5111.12 - Residency Based on Parent/Guardian Employment) 

(cf. 5111.13 - Residency for Homeless Children) 

(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 



3 

 

(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 

(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 

(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 

 

Curriculum and Instruction 

 

The district's transitional kindergarten program shall be based on a modified kindergarten 

curriculum that is age and developmentally appropriate.  (Education Code 48000) 

 

(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 

(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 

 

***Note:  In designing a modified kindergarten curriculum for purposes of transitional 

kindergarten, the district may refer to state model content standards for core subjects at the 

kindergarten level, Common Core Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605.8, and 

state "preschool learning foundations"; see BP 6011 - Academic Standards. *** 

 

Upon recommendation by the Superintendent or designee, the Board shall approve common core 

academic standards for transitional kindergarten that bridge preschool learning foundations and 

kindergarten standards.  Such standards shall be designed to facilitate students' development in 

essential skills which may include, as appropriate, language and literacy, mathematics, physical 

development, the arts, science, social sciences, English language development, and 

social-emotional development. 

 

(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 

 

***Note:  The following optional paragraph should be revised to reflect district practice.  

Pursuant to Education Code 46111 and 46117, at the kindergarten level the minimum school day 

is 180 minutes and the maximum school day is four hours (240 minutes), unless the district has 

adopted an extended-day kindergarten pursuant to Education Code 8973. The CDE advises that 

the district's annual instructional minutes for kindergarten, as reflected in its annual audit, is the 

number of instructional minutes that should be offered to transitional kindergarten students; also 

see AR 6112 - School Day. *** 

 

The number of instructional minutes offered in transitional kindergarten shall be the same as that 

required for the district's kindergarten program. 

 

(cf. 6111 - School Calendar) 

(cf. 6112 - School Day) 

 

***Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. According 

to the CDE's "Transitional Kindergarten FAQs," it is the intent of the law to provide separate and 



4 

 

unique experiences for transitional kindergarten and kindergarten students. However, districts 

have flexibility to determine how best to meet the curricular needs of each child and whether 

transitional kindergarten and kindergarten students may be enrolled in the same classrooms. *** 

 

Transitional kindergarten students may be placed in the same classrooms as kindergarten 

students when necessary, provided that the instructional program is differentiated to meet student 

needs.  

 

Staffing 

 

***Note: The Commission on Teacher Credentialing, in its Credential Information Alert on 

"Transitional Kindergarten Assignments," clarifies that a transitional kindergarten classroom is 

appropriately staffed by any holder of a multiple subjects teaching credential.  A holder of a 

child development permit is not authorized to teach transitional kindergarten since the definition 

of transitional kindergarten in Education Code 48000, as amended by SB 1381 (Ch. 705, Statutes 

of 2010), clarifies that transitional kindergarten classrooms are not preschool classrooms or child 

development programs. *** 

 

***Note:  Transitional kindergarten assignments are subject to assignment monitoring and 

reporting by county offices of education in accordance with Education Code 44258.9. *** 

 

Teachers assigned to teach in transitional kindergarten classes shall possess a teaching credential 

or permit that authorizes instruction at the kindergarten grade level.  

 

(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 

 

The Superintendent or designee may provide professional development as needed to ensure that 

transitional kindergarten teachers are knowledgeable about district standards and effective 

instructional methods for teaching young children.  

 

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

 

Continuation to Kindergarten 

 

***Note: The following optional paragraph is consistent with guidance in CDE's "Transitional 

Kindergarten FAQs." *** 

 

Students who complete the transitional kindergarten program shall be eligible to continue in 

kindergarten the following school year. Parents/guardians of such students shall not be required 

to submit a signed parental permission form for kindergarten attendance. 

 

***Note: Pursuant to Education Code 46300, the district may not include for apportionment 

purposes the attendance of any student for more than two years in a combination of transitional 

kindergarten and kindergarten. *** 



5 

 

 

A student shall not attend more than two years in a combination of transitional kindergarten and 

kindergarten. (Education Code 46300) 

 

(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 

 

 

Program Evaluation 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall develop or identify appropriate assessments of transitional 

kindergarten students' development and progress.  He/she shall monitor and regularly report to 

the Board regarding program implementation and the progress of students in meeting related 

academic standards. 

 

(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 

(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 

 

 

 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

8973  Extended-day kindergarten 

44258.9  Assignment monitoring by county office of education 

46111  Kindergarten, hours of attendance 

46114-46119  Minimum school day, kindergarten 

46300  Computation of average daily attendance, inclusion of kindergarten and transitional 

kindergarten 

48000  Minimum age of admission (kindergarten) 

48002  Evidence of minimum age required to enter kindergarten or first grade 

48200  Compulsory education, starting at age six 

60605.8  Academic Content Standards Commission, development of Common Core Standards 

 

Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Transitional Kindergarten, Issue Brief, July 2011 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Transitional Kindergarten FAQs 

California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 1, 2010 

California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 1, 2008 

Prekindergarten Learning Development Guidelines, 2000 

First Class: A Guide for Early Primary Education, 1999 

COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING PUBLICATIONS 

11-08  Transitional Kindergarten Assignments, Credential Information Alert, August 25, 2011 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org  



6 

 

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 

California Kindergarten Association: http://www.ckanet.org 

Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 

Transitional Kindergarten California: http://www.tkcalifornia.org 

 

 

       SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

        SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  

Policy Adopted:  January 1, 2012           Sierraville, California 



















































Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities 
 

AR 6145  

Instruction 
 

 

Definitions 

 

Extracurricular activities are those programs that have all of the following characteristics:  

(Education Code 35160.5) 

 

1. The program is supervised or financed by the school district. 

 

2. Students participating in the program represent the school district. 

 

3. Students exercise some degree of freedom in the selection, planning or control of the 

program. 

 

4. The program includes both preparation for performance and performance before an 

audience or spectators. 

 

Extracurricular activities are not part of the regular school curriculum, are not graded, do not 

offer credit and do not take place during classroom time.  (Education Code 35160.5) 

 

Cocurricular activities are programs that may be associated with the curriculum in a regular 

classroom.  (Education Code 35160.5) 

 

An activity is not an extracurricular or cocurricular activity if either of the following conditions 

applies:  (Education Code 35160.5) 

 

1. It is a teacher-graded or required program or activity for a course which satisfies the 

entrance requirements for admission to the California State University or the University of 

California. 

 

2. It is a program that has as its primary goal the improvement of academic or educational 

achievement of students. 

 

Eligibility Requirements 

 

Grades 7-8 

 

The grade point average used to determine eligibility shall be based on the grades entered into 

the district's attendance/grading program on a designated day of every school week, i.e. Tuesday. 



When a student becomes ineligible to participate in extracurricular or cocurricular activities, the 

student's parent will be notified by the school designee or supervisor of activity (i.e. team coach). 

 

Grades 9-12 

 

The grade point average used to determine eligibility shall be based on grades of the last 

previous grading period during which the student attended class at least a majority of the time.  

(Education Code 35160.5) 

 

 

 

Regulation SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 

revised: October 9, 2007 



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities 
 

BP 6145  

Instruction 
 

 

The Board of Education recognizes that extracurricular and cocurricular activities enrich the educational and 

social development and experiences of students.  The district shall encourage and support student participation 

in extracurricular and cocurricular activities without compromising the integrity and purpose of the educational 

program. 

 

No extracurricular or cocurricular program or activity shall be provided or conducted separately and no district 

student's participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities shall be required or refused based on the 

student's gender, sexual orientation, ethnic group identification, race, ancestry, national origin, religion, color, 

or mental or physical disability.  Requirements for participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities 

shall be limited to those that are essential to the success of the activity.  (5 CCR 4925) 

 

Any complaint regarding the district's extracurricular and cocurricular programs or activities shall be filed in 

accordance with BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. 

 

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 

 

No student shall be prohibited from participating in extracurricular and cocurricular activities related to the 

educational program because of inability to pay fees associated with the activity. 

 

(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 

 

Eligibility Requirements 

 

To be eligible to participate in extracurricular and cocurricular activities, students in grades 7-8 must 

demonstrate weekly satisfactory academic progress including but not limited to:   

 

1. Maintenance of a grade report that reflects no "F's" or failing grades. 

 

a.  Students may practice with an "F" grade but are not allowed to participate in games, tournaments, or 

travel with the team. 

 

b.  Students who are ineligible three times in a season will be dropped from the team for the remainder of 

the season. 

 

The Superintendent or designee may revoke a student's eligibility for participation in extracurricular and 

cocurricular activities when the student's poor citizenship is serious enough to warrant loss of this privilege. 

 

To be eligible to participate in extracurricular and cocurricular activities, students in grades 9 through 12 must 

demonstrate satisfactory educational progress in the previous grading period including but not limited to: 



(Education Code 35160.5) 

 

1.  Maintenance of a minimum of 2.0 grade point average on a 4.0 scale with no "F" grade(s) 

 

2.  Maintenance of minimum progress toward meeting high school graduation requirements 

 

3.  Students must meet eligibility requirements as defined by California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) 

 

(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 

(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination) 

 

The Superintendent or designee may grant ineligible students a probationary period of not more than one 

semester. Students granted probationary eligibility must meet the required standards by the end of the 

probationary period in order to remain eligible for participation. 

 

The Superintendent or designee may revoke a student's eligibility for participation in extracurricular and 

cocurricular activities when the student's poor citizenship is serious enough to warrant loss of this privilege. 

 

(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 

 

Pupils or adult education students who choose to engage in independent study are to have the same access to 

existing services and resources as the other pupils or adult education students of the school in which the 

independent study pupil or adult education student is enrolled; and pupils or adult education students who 

choose to engage in independent study are to have equality of rights and privileges with the pupils or adult 

education students of the district or county office of education who choose to continue in the regular program.  

(5 CCR 11701.5) 

 

Annual Policy Review 

 

The Board shall annually review this policy and implementing regulations. 

 

 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 

35145  Public meetings 

35160.5  District policy rules and regulations; requirements; matters subject to regulation 
35179  Interscholastic athletics; associations or consortia 

48930-48938  Student organizations 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
350  Fees not permitted 

4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state financial assistance 

5531  Supervision of extracurricular activities of pupils 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 

COURT DECISIONS 
Hartzell v. Connell,  (1984) 35 Cal. 3d  899 

 

Management Resources: 
CDE LEGAL ADVISORIES 

001.90  Access to School-Related Activities and Events by Disabled Students, LO: 3-0 

409.87  Requirements for Pupil Participation in Extracurricular and Cocurricular activities, AB 2613, CIL: 86/87-11 
WEB SITES 

California Association of Directors of Activities:  http://www.cada1.org 

 

 

 

Policy SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

adopted: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 

revised: October 9, 2007 


	1_scoe_agenda.pdf
	2_SCOEDEC11REP.pdf
	3_12-13-11 SCOE Minutes.pdf
	4_SCOEDEC11CK.pdf
	5_BP6170.1 Kinder Trans.pdf
	6_Core_curric_TK.pdf
	7_AR6145 Extra Curr.pdf
	7_BP6145 Extra Curr.pdf

